COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

between the

NORTHBOROUGH-SOUTHBOROUGH REGIONAL SCHOOL COMMITTEE

and the

ALGONQUIN REGIONAL TEACHERS ASSOCIATION (ARTA)

2023 - 2026

Table of Contents

ARTICLE I	1
RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II	1
CODE OF ETHICS	1
ARTICLE III	1
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE AND THE SUPERINTENDENT	1
ARTICLE IV	2
EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS	2
ARTICLE V	2
TEACHER PROTECTION	2
ARTICLE VI	3
OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES	3
ARTICLE VII	6
DEPARTMENT CHAIRS	6
ARTICLE VIII	7
SICK LEAVE POLICY	7
ARTICLE IX	8
TIME OFF BENEFITS	8
ARTICLE X	10
EXTENDED LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY	10
ARTICLE XI	12
SABBATICAL LEAVES	12
ARTICLE XII	13
SALARY SCHEDULE	13
ARTICLE XIII	16
JOB SHARING	16
ARTICLE XIV	17
HEALTH INSURANCE	17
ARTICLE XV	19
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT	19
ARTICLE XVI	19
OTHER STIPENDS	19
ARTICLE XVII	24
TEXTBOOKS	24
ARTICLE XVIII	24
USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES	24

ARTICLE XIX	24
TEACHER EMPLOYMENT AND ASSIGNMENTS	24
ARTICLE XX	24
TEACHER EVALUATION	25
ARTICLE XXI	25
VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS	25
ARTICLE XXII	26
TEACHER FILES	26
ARTICLE XXIII	26
NON-TEACHING DUTIES	26
ARTICLE XXIV	27
DUES DEDUCTION	27
ARTICLE XXV	28
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES	28
ARTICLE XXVI	30
REDUCTION IN FORCE (RIF)	30
ARTICLE XXVII	32
LONGEVITY	32
ARTICLE XXVIII	32
EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM	32
ARTICLE XXIX	33
SAVINGS AND SEPARABILITY	33
ARTICLE XXX	33
TUTORS	33
ARTICLE XXXI	34
DURATION	34
NON-CONTRACTUAL MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING	36
APPENDIX A	37
PRIMARY FOCUS (Department Chairs)	37
APPENDIX B	39
RECOGNITION OF A CLUB SPORT	39
APPENDIX C	40
FLEXIBLE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	40
APPENDIX D	41
CLUB ADVISOR STIPENDS	41

ARTICLE I

RECOGNITION

For the purpose of collective bargaining with respect to salaries, hours and other conditions of employment, the negotiations of collective bargaining agreements, and any questions arising thereunder, the Northborough-Southborough Regional School District Committee recognizes the Algonquin Regional Teachers Association as the exclusive bargaining agent and representative of the following professional permanent employees: Guidance Counselors, Library Media Specialist, School Nurse, Adjustment Counselors, Occupational Therapists, Physical Therapists, Speech Therapists, Behavioral Therapists, School Psychologists, Tutors, and Classroom Teachers and excluding all other managerial and confidential employees pursuant to Chapter 150E of the Massachusetts General Laws, per diem substitutes, custodians, cafeteria employees, secretaries, aides, business manager, Director of ELL, Nurse Leader, Superintendent, Assistant Superintendent, the Director of Student Services, Assistant Director of Student Services, Principals, Assistant Principals, Director of Curriculum, Director of Technology and all other employees.

The Negotiations Committee will represent the Algonquin Regional Teachers Association (hereinafter referred to as "the Association") in collective bargaining with the Northborough-Southborough Regional School District Committee (hereinafter referred to as "the Committee").

ARTICLE II

CODE OF ETHICS

The Algonquin Regional Teachers Association and the Algonquin Regional School Committee agree to adhere respectively to the principles outlined in the most current Code of Ethics published by the National Education Association and the Massachusetts Association of School Committees.

ARTICLE III

RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF THE SCHOOL COMMITTEE AND THE SUPERINTENDENT

<u>Section 1</u>. The Committee is recognized as a public body established under and possessing all those functions and powers granted to it by the Statutes of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and the rules and regulations of agencies of the Commonwealth.

<u>Section 2</u>. Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to derogate from or impair any power, right, or responsibility heretofore possessed by the School Committee and/or the Superintendent except where such power, right, or responsibility heretofore possessed by the School Committee and/or the Superintendent is specifically limited by an agreement.

ARTICLE IV

EMPLOYEE RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS

<u>Section 1</u>. Employees shall have and shall be protected in the exercise of the right, freely and without fear of penalty of reprisal, to form, join and assist employee organizations or to refrain from such activity; to hold office and participate in the management of the Association; to act in the capacity of Association representative; and to engage in other lawful associations and concerted activities for the purposes of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or protection.

<u>Section 2</u>. In the exercise of these rights, all employees shall be free from any and all interference, restraint and coercion; and such employees shall be protected against any discrimination in regard to tenure, promotion, or other conditions of employment.

<u>Section 3</u>. Any of the benefits, privileges, and conditions of employment currently in force will not be unilaterally impaired.

<u>Section 4</u>. All of the above rights may be exercised so long as they do not interfere with employees' professional or contractual obligations.

ARTICLE V

TEACHER PROTECTION

<u>Section 1</u>. Teachers will immediately report to the Superintendent, in writing, all cases of assault suffered by them in connection with their employment.

<u>Section 2</u>. This report will be forwarded to the Committee which will comply with any responsible request from the teacher for information in its possession related to the incident or to the persons involved and will act in appropriate ways as liaison between the teachers, police and the courts.

<u>Section 3</u>. If criminal or civil proceedings are brought against a teacher alleging that they committed an assault in connection with his employment, the Committee will furnish legal counsel and all fees necessary to defend them in such proceedings if they request such assistance, provided that such employee is not in violation of school policy.

<u>Section 4</u>. If an appeal from a guilty finding is taken by the teacher, the expenses of such appeal shall not be paid for by a Committee unless approved by vote of the Committee.

ARTICLE VI

OPERATIONAL GUIDELINES

Section 1. School Year.

(a) The teacher work year shall consist of 185 working days to include the day before the start of the student school year, 180 days for instructional purposes, and four (4) days for professional development. The Committee and ARTA agree that the work year (including teacher preparation day and professional development days) will begin no earlier than the Monday before Labor Day unless mutually agreed to by the parties no later than January 15th for the coming academic year.

Of the four (4) days for professional development, one (1) of the days will be considered a Flexible Professional Development Day. If one (1) of the remaining three professional development days is canceled due to a school cancellation, that professional development day will then become a second (2) Flexible Professional Development day that year. (See Appendix C for details around Flexible Professional Development).

A joint committee consisting of an equal number of representatives of the Committee and the Association will make programmatic recommendations to the Superintendent and Committee regarding the content of the professional development days.

(b) Teachers shall not be required to work on Saturdays, Sundays, or holidays except by mutual agreement between the Association and the Committee.

Section 2. School Day.

- (a) It has been the policy of the Committee not to stipulate the time teachers should arrive at school or at what time they should leave. It is agreed that teachers, as professionals, should be aware of their responsibility to be in their classrooms when their students arrive and of their responsibility to be available to students for make-up and special help when this is needed. The practice of handling this in a professional manner shall be continued.
- (b) The length of the pupils' school day shall not be increased or decreased without the mutual agreement of the Association and the Committee unless otherwise required by the State Department of Elementary and Secondary Education.
- (c) The parties to this Agreement recognize that compliance with state regulations on Student Learning Time may necessitate changes in the structure of the school day. We believe that this matter will best be addressed through a broad-based decision-making process involving teachers, students, the administrative school-based leadership team and the school council. This team approach will develop creative scheduling that results in compliance with new regulations for subsequent academic years.

Section 3. Lunch Period. Every teacher will have a duty free thirty (30) minute daily lunch period.

Section 4. Teaching Load.

(a) Teachers will be assigned a maximum of twenty-five (25) teaching blocks and a minimum of the equivalent of one (1) daily duty-free preparation period in a five-day cycle. A double-block class will count as two (2) teaching blocks. No teacher shall be assigned more than five (5) course units per semester and a maximum of five (5) additional assigned periods per five-day cycle. A course unit shall be defined as a class or a combination of classes that meets five (5) times per cycle.

Assignments may include one or more of the following:

- 1. Professional Learning Communities.
- 2. Maintenance of specialized equipment and specialized facilities by mutual agreement of teacher and administrator.
- 3. Directed Study supervision.
- 4. Cafeteria supervision -- only after available volunteers have been utilized.
- 5. Supervision of areas such as lavatories, hallways and resource rooms. Such assignments will be made in accordance with teacher preference.
- 6. Emergency duties to be assigned only on a temporary basis.

All assignments of additional periods shall be prorated according to the percent of employment not including the professional responsibilities.

A group of administrators and teachers will meet to formulate procedures for the equitable assignment and rotation of duties.

In an effort to enhance collaboration, the administration will provide a list to department chairs of duties that need coverage. These duties will be in accordance with the additional assigned periods as noted above. In providing duties to each department the administration will endeavor to have a proportional number of different types of duties based on the number of department team members (i.e., cafeteria supervision, supervision of areas, directed study supervision). Except in unusual circumstances, the duty list will be posted in advance of each semester. All staff (except tutors, nurses, and educators in their first year) will have duties.

District will endeavor to provide each teacher with a PLC. The PLC could be before or after school as agreed upon beforehand with the Principal. If the PLC is held before or after school, this will still be considered a duty.

The above is subject to modification only by mutual agreement of teacher and administration.

(b) Teachers shall not be required to teach more than two subject-matter areas nor have more than three preparations per day, except by mutual agreement between the Principal, the

teacher, and the Association. Advanced Placement, College Prep and Honors courses are considered single and distinct classes. This is subject to modification for educational innovation (i.e. fundamental courses), experimentation, and group instruction and safety and space concerns.

- (c) No teacher shall be assigned classes which total average more than twenty-five (25) pupils per class. No teacher shall be assigned a total load of more than one hundred twenty-five pupils per semester. These limits would not apply to ensembles such as band and chorus. No class shall exceed thirty (30) pupils per class. These ratios are subject to modification for educational innovation, experimentation, and group instruction and safety and space concerns. The Northborough-Southborough Regional School District Committee and the Algonquin Regional Teachers Association recognize the value of small class size to meet the individual educational needs of all students; therefore they both share the goal that no class should exceed twenty-five (25) pupils.
- (d) No teacher shall be required or assigned to teach outside the teacher's licensure unless by mutual agreement between the teacher and the Superintendent.
- (e) The Committee agrees to work towards a ratio of sixty (60) teachers and fifteen (15) professional, non-teaching employees for every one thousand (1,000) pupils.
- (f) Teachers will be paid forty-five dollars (\$45) per single class for covering any class during their preparation period when coverage is required through lack of regular substitute coverage. This provision does not apply to teachers who have been relieved of their classes through graduation or field trips. It is understood that this section applies to all unit members including Department Chairs, Specialists, Guidance and Media/Library staff and that Administration will work to ensure that the assignment of coverage is equitably offered to all bargaining unit members. While nothing herein requires the district to make available a minimum number of class coverage opportunities, the district will not change the policy regarding substitute coverage (see Article IX, Section 1A).
- (g) Faculty members required by law (under Chapter 766) to attend Team Evaluations, which are scheduled to commence after 3:30 P.M., shall be reimbursed at the rate of twenty-seven dollars and fifty cents (\$27.50) an hour. Every effort will be made to schedule these meetings immediately after school.
- (h) Faculty members who participate in curriculum workshops approved in advance by the Superintendent or his designee shall be compensated at the rate of **thirty-six** dollars and **eighty-seven** cents (36.87) per hour.
- (i) The Association President(s) shall be assigned no "additional" periods, as defined in Section 4(a) [Teaching Load], subsections 1 through 6 of this Article.

ARTICLE VII

DEPARTMENT CHAIRS

<u>Section 1</u>. Department Chair Specifications and Departments

- (a) Within a reasonable period of time after either party requests a review of any department chair job description, the Committee and the Association will establish a joint committee to review and, if necessary, revise the department chair job description. The joint committee will consist of three (3) members of the Administration and three (3) department chairs chosen by the Association. These persons shall select from among themselves a chair. The joint committee shall render a report of its findings to the Association and the School Committee. Any changes in the department chair's job description shall be subject to ratification by both parties.
- (b) Job specifications so ratified by both parties:
 - 1. shall be in written form; and
 - 2. shall be provided to the affected department chair(s); and
 - 3. shall be maintained by the Administration in a designated file; and
 - 4. shall not be modified or revoked without the specified agreement of both the Administration and the Association.
- (c) The sections related to the Department Chair, entitled Primary Focus and Specific Functions are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference as noted in Appendix "A".
- (d) The following shall be the departments at Algonquin:

Applied Arts and Technology

Mathematics English Science

Fine and Performing Arts
Guidance
World Languages
Social Studies
Health and Fitness
Student Services

Section 2. Student Services

This position will support student learning in the Student Services Department. Working under the direction and supervision of the Student Services Coordinator, the Student Services Department Chair will assume responsibilities that may include the following:

- Coaching special education teachers and aides
- Coordinating MCAS accommodations with the Coordinator of Student Services/Department Chairs/Assistant Principals
- Facilitating College Board and ACT testing accommodation submissions
- Providing support to the department with the Educator Evaluation Process
- Investigating and assisting in identifying instructional resources for students and teachers
- Participating in the orientation of new staff and students
- Participating in Algonquin's SBLT meetings as appropriate

ARTICLE VIII

SICK LEAVE POLICY

<u>Section 1</u>. Teachers shall be credited with fifteen (15) sick days at the beginning of each school year cumulative to one hundred eighty-five (185) days.

<u>Section 2</u>. Deductions for excused absences beyond the allowable sick leave or for other cause shall be computed at the rate of one one-hundred eighty-fifth (1/185) of the annual rate of salary. Stipends obtained from extracurricular activities will not be included in the deduction. This last sentence will not apply when an additional stipend must be paid to complete the activity.

<u>Section 3</u>. In the event of the absence of a teacher for illness in excess of five (5) consecutive days, the Committee will require the filing of a doctor's certificate, or the Superintendent may, if **they have** reasonable cause to believe that there is an abuse of sick leave policy, require an examination by an independent physician; such examination shall be at the Committee's expense.

<u>Section 4</u>. A sick leave bank shall be established. Any teacher may contribute **one (1)** sick days per year to this bank. Such contribution must be made within thirty (30) days of the employment contract in any given school year. Any teacher who has contributed to this bank during the current contract year and has used the teacher's accumulated sick leave **and 3 personal days** will be entitled to borrow from the bank, subject to the approval of the sick leave bank board.

New hires cannot access the sick bank for the first three (3) years of service. The board will consist of two (2) members chosen by ARTA and two (2) representatives chosen by the School Committee to oversee the operation of the bank under the following circumstances:

- (a) Annual funding of the bank will consist of 1000 days.
- (b) Individual petitions will be presented to the board by interested parties.
- (c) When the sick bank falls below two hundred fifty (250) days, each participating teacher will then contribute one (1) or more days to be deducted from his/her yearly sick credit.
- (d) In the event the bank is depleted, additional bank days will be funded on a voluntary basis.
- (e) After 10 cumulative years of participation in and contributions to the sick bank, members will no longer need to contribute for membership in the sick bank.
- (f) The sick bank will reset to 1000 days annually.
- (g) Petitioner or **their** representative must present pertinent medical data and proof of illness. A response to any petitioner will be forwarded within two (2) weeks.
- (h) Applications will be considered accepted unless refused by a simple majority vote of the board.
- (i) All petitions are to be held in strict confidence.

The chair of the sick bank board shall be chosen from the Association members of the board. Sick bank benefits will not extend beyond the limits of the employment contract. The board shall notify the Superintendent's office of payments to be made from the bank and shall submit quarterly statements of its condition.

<u>Section 5</u>. If a teacher leaves the District's employ during the first year, the number of days to which the teacher is entitled will be prorated and **their** severance pay will be adjusted accordingly.

<u>Section 6</u>. After ten (10) years of employment in the district, an employee who retires from the district shall receive a sick leave buyback according to the following schedule:

- After 10 years of employment: \$10 per day to a maximum of one hundred (100) days
- After twenty (20) years of employment: \$20 per day to a maximum of one hundred (100) days

<u>Section 7.</u> An employee may supplement a worker's compensation claim payment with their available sick time in order to keep their pay whole.

ARTICLE IX

TIME OFF BENEFITS

<u>Section 1</u>. Teachers will be entitled to the following leaves of absence with pay each school year.

(a) A total of five (5) days of absence may be taken for legal or personal business; or for household or family matters which require absence during school hours. Application for personal leave up to the three (days) will be made to the Principal at least forty-eight (48) hours before taking such leave (except in the case of emergencies) and the applicant for such leave will not be required to state the reason for taking such leave other than that **they are** taking it under this section.

Personal days may not be taken immediately preceding or following a vacation or District recognized holidays. In special circumstances, the superintendent may authorize the use of personal leave days immediately preceding or directly following holidays and vacations. Under no circumstances shall said days be used to extend a vacation or holiday.

Requests for personal time taken beyond the first three (3) days shall state a reason for the request and may be approved by the High School Principal provided there is sufficient coverage. Requests must be submitted at least two weeks prior to the dates requested for personal leave. Requests that are denied may be rescheduled with the

Principal or appealed to the Superintendent of Schools.

Teachers who need short term leave for reasons stipulated as "personal time" for a length of time not to exceed two "regular" class periods during the school day will not be charged for leave time if they do not need coverage or if they arrange for a colleague to cover their class and there is no substitute cost to the district.

(b) Religious holidays. Bargaining unit members may be granted up to three (3) days each year to observe recognized religious holidays of the faith to which such members belong when such holiday falls upon such a day when school is in session. The Superintendent of Schools shall be the final arbiter of what is recognized as any "Bona Fide or sincerely held religious beliefs." Notice to the Superintendent must be given ten (10) school days in advance of the holiday where practicable. Approved absence for such religious holidays shall not be deducted from personal leave or sick leave. Additional religious holidays may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent on a case-by-case basis.

If the School Committee should change the school calendar **to** one where classes are held on days currently designated as religious holidays, either party may request to impact bargain over the change.

- (c) <u>Bereavement Leave</u>. Up to three (3) school days at any one time in the event of the death of a teacher's spouse, child, parent, grandparent, sibling, son-, daughter-, father-, mother-in- law, grandchild, significant other, or other members of the immediate household. Teachers will be granted one (1) day at any one time in the event of the death of a brother-in-law, sister-in-law, uncle, aunt, niece, nephew or cousin. If additional days for bereavement are required, they may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent. In the event of a death of a relative or friend where the bond is so strong that attendance constitutes a moral obligation, one (1) personal or sick day may be used.
- (d) <u>Bedside Care</u> Up to three (3) school days annually in the event of an illness requiring bedside or household attention by the teacher or the teacher's spouse, significant other, child, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, son-, daughter-, mother-, father-in-law or other member of the immediate household. Five (5) days of accumulated sick leave may also be used for family illness annually. Additional family sick leave may be granted on a case by case basis by the superintendent. Any additional time will be deducted from the employee's accrued sick time.
- (e) Professional days for the purpose of visiting other schools, attending meetings or conferences relating to curriculum development or organizational structure will be allowed provided a written proposal is presented to and approved by the Superintendent of Schools at least two (2) days in advance. No more than ten percent (10%) of each building faculty on any given day will be absent for this purpose.
- (f) The Committee agrees to provide twelve (12) days during any school year for persons called into temporary active duty of any unit of the U.S. Reserves or State National Guard provided such obligations cannot be filled on days when school is not in session. Teachers will be paid the difference between their regular pay and the pay that they receive from the

State or Federal Government.

- (g) <u>Parental Leave</u>. Teachers will be granted up to ten (10) days in the event of a birth adoption or foster care placement. Five (5) additional days may be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent of Schools. Days granted pursuant to this section shall be deducted from sick leave.
- <u>Section 2</u>. Leaves taken pursuant to Section 1 above will be in addition to any sick leave to which the teacher is entitled. No teacher will be required to arrange for **their** own substitute.
- <u>Section 3</u>. Time necessary for four (4) Association representatives to attend MTA and/or NEA conventions and conferences will be allowed.
- <u>Section 4.</u> Teachers required to perform jury duty shall receive leave with pay for the duration of such duty. Compensation shall be the difference between jury duty pay, exclusive of mileage, and the teacher's regular pay.
- <u>Section 5</u>. <u>Association Days.</u> The president(s) of the Association or their designee will be released for four (4) days during the school year to attend to association business. The scheduling of the association's release days shall be arranged with their immediate supervisor. Substitute stipends will be paid for by the school district. Additional time may be provided at the discretion of the president's or their designee's immediate supervisor.

ARTICLE X

EXTENDED LEAVES OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY

<u>Section 1</u>. The Committee agrees that up to three (3) teachers designated by the Association will, upon request, be granted a leave of absence for up to two (2) years without pay for the purpose of engaging in Association (local, state or national) activities. Upon return from such leave, a teacher will be considered as if **they** were actively employed by the Committee during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level **they** would have achieved if the teacher had not been absent.

<u>Section 2</u>. A leave of absence without pay for up to two (2) years will be granted to any teacher with professional teacher status who joins the Peace Corps, AmeriCorps, or serves as an exchange teacher and is a full-time teaching participant in either of such programs. Upon return from such leave, a teacher will be considered as if the teacher were actively employed by the Committee during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level **they** would have achieved if the teacher had not been absent.

<u>Section 3</u>. Military leave will be granted to any teacher with professional teacher status at Algonquin Regional High School who is inducted or enlists because such induction is imminent into any branch of the Armed Forces of the United States. Upon return from such leave, a teacher will be considered as if the teacher were actively employed by the Committee during the leave and will be placed on the salary schedule at the level **they** would have achieved if the teacher had not been absent up to a maximum of three (3) years.

<u>Section 4A.</u> Parental Leave of Absence. Pursuant to Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 149, Section 105D, every teacher is entitled to up to eight (8) weeks of parental leave if they have completed an initial probationary period of three (3) months and if they give at least two (2) weeks' notice of the expected departure and return dates.

A teacher who has been employed for one (1) complete year shall be entitled to a leave of absence without pay for up to twelve (12) consecutive weeks for birth, adoption, foster care placement of a child, or if a serious health condition affects the employee or the employee's spouse, child, or parent in accordance with the Family and Medical Leave Act. Said leave shall be concurrent with and not in addition to Parental Leave and Child-Rearing Leave under the collective bargaining agreement.

<u>Section 4B.</u> Child Rearing Leave of Absence. A child rearing leave of absence of up to two (2) years without pay will be granted to a teacher with professional teacher status in connection with the birth or adoption of his or her child. The teacher shall notify the administration in writing three (3) months prior to the expected leaving date. The leave will commence at the end of a marking term whenever possible. A leave of absence under this section shall be limited to one family member within the school system at any one time.

<u>Section 5</u>. A teacher who is utilizing the Family and Medical Leave Act for his/her own illness will be required to use sick leave during the period of leave attributable to his/her illness. Consistent with the Family and Medical Leave Act, during said twelve (12) week leave, an employee on leave under this Section shall continue to be eligible for health insurance with the District and the employee during said leave will remit to the District **their** share of the premium.

<u>Section 6.</u> A leave of absence without pay or increment of up to one (1) year will be granted **to** teachers for the purpose of caring for a sick member of the teacher's immediate family.

<u>Section 7</u>. The Committee will grant a leave of absence without pay not to exceed the lesser of one (1) full term of office or two (2) years to any teacher with professional teacher status to campaign for or serve in a public office provided this does not breach any contractual obligation and that sufficient educational benefit to the District can be demonstrated.

<u>Section 8</u>. A teacher with professional teacher status may be granted a leave of absence without pay or increment for up to two (2) years for health reasons. Requests for such leaves will be supported by appropriate medical evidence.

<u>Section 9</u>. Any teacher without professional teacher status whose personal illness extends beyond the period compensated may be granted a leave of absence without pay until the end of the school year. Requests for extension of such leave may be submitted to the School Committee for consideration.

<u>Section 9A</u>. Any professional status teacher will be entitled to a two (2) year leave of absence without pay to pursue an alternative career. Application shall be made to the Superintendent on or before January 15. After this date, such leave will be granted at the discretion of the Superintendent. Leave must be requested and will be granted in full-year increments only.

<u>Section 9B</u>. If an individual is granted a position outside the bargaining unit, but within the district, then they shall accrue seniority, including but not limited to salary advancement in accordance with the salary scale for up to two (2) years.

<u>Section 10</u>. Teachers on such leaves must notify the Superintendent of their intent to return or their intent to extend their leave no later than January 15th of the school year preceding the school year of return. The leave granting document shall contain the notification of intent to return information and forfeiture provisions of the collective bargaining agreement. Acceptance of this document shall be a condition of the leave. Failure to respond in writing, postmarked no later than January 15th of the school year preceding the school year of return, will result in the forfeiture of the teacher's position and shall be considered a voluntary resignation.

<u>Section 11</u>. All benefits to which a teacher was entitled at the time his leave of absence commenced, including unused accumulated sick leave, will be restored to **them** upon **their** return; and subject to Article XXVI, the teacher will be assigned to the same position which the teacher held at the time said leave commenced, if available, or if not, to a substantially equivalent position.

ARTICLE XI

SABBATICAL LEAVES

Sabbatical leaves will be granted for an organized program of professional advancement to members of the Association by the Superintendent. Such leaves are designed to improve the quality of education at Algonquin Regional High School, in the judgment of the Superintendent, thus increasing the benefits accruing to pupils. Sabbatical leaves will be subject to the following conditions:

- (a) The employee shall have completed at least seven (7) full years of employment.
- (b) No more than two (2) employees per school year will be granted sabbatical leave, and no more than one (1) such employee from a single department may be granted such leave at any particular time.
- (c) Requests or notifications of intent of sabbatical leave must be received in writing in such form as may be required by the Superintendent no later than October 1. Action must be taken on all such requests no later than April 1 of the school year preceding the school year for which a sabbatical leave is requested.
- (d) In the event the number of applications received exceeds one (1) in any department or two (2) employees, the application will be evaluated on the following factors:
 - 1. Educational value of the proposed program to Algonquin Regional High School.
 - 2. The quality of past performance by the employee.
 - 3. The length of service by the employee.
- (e) Upon return to employment, the employee shall be placed on the appropriate salary step in the salary schedule as though such employee had not taken leave.

- (f) The employee will agree in writing that, upon termination of leave, the employee will return to Algonquin Regional High School for a period equal to twice the length of such leave and that, in default of completing such service, the employee will pay back to the District an amount equal to such proportion of the salary received by the employee while on leave as the amount of service not actually rendered bears to the whole amount of service agreed to be rendered.
- (g) Employees on sabbatical leave—either full year or half year—will be reimbursed one-half a full year's salary provided that such payment, when added to any grant received, does not exceed the employee's present salary. If the present salary is exceeded, the District's participation will be reduced by the amount necessary to maintain the present salary.
- (h) Sabbatical leave will not be granted for the purpose of study for another trade or profession.

ARTICLE XII

SALARY SCHEDULE

Section 1.

2023-2024 School Year 2.25% 2024-2025 School Year 3.0% 2025-2026 School Year 3.0%

FY24							
2.25%	BACHELORS	B+15	MASTERS	M+18	ADV STUDY: MM/CAGS/M+36	M+60	DOCTORATE
STEP 0	54,041	56,052	58,501	60,692	62,652	65,266	69,835
STEP 1	57,253	59,268	62,396	64,593	66,725	69,515	74,381
STEP 2	60,465	62,483	66,292	68,495	70,797	73,763	78,927
STEP 3	63,676	65,699	70,185	72,397	74,871	78,012	83,472
STEP 4	66,889	68,913	74,081	76,300	78,943	82,260	88,018
STEP 5	70,101	72,129	77,975	80,202	83,016	86,509	92,564
STEP 6	73,312	75,345	81,871	84,104	87,089	90,757	97,110
STEP 7	76,525	78,560	85,765	88,006	91,162	95,006	101,656
STEP 8	79,736	81,775	89,660	91,906	95,235	99,254	106,202
STEP 9	82,947	84,991	93,556	95,808	99,307	103,503	110,748
STEP 10	86,160	88,206	97,449	99,710	103,380	107,751	115,294
STEP 11	89,372	91,422	101,345	103,612	107,454	112,000	119,840

BACHELORS	B+15	MASTERS	M+18	ADV STUDY: MM/CAGS/M+36	M+60	DOCTORATE
55,662	57,734	60,256	62,512	64,531	67,224	71,930
58,970	61,046	64,268	66,531	68,727	71,600	76,612
62,278	64,357	68,280	70,550	72,921	75,976	81,294
65,586	67,670	72,291	74,569	77,117	80,352	85,977
68,896	70,981	76,304	78,589	81,311	84,728	90,659
72,204	74,293	80,314	82,608	85,506	89,104	95,341
75,512	77,605	84,327	86,627	89,702	93,480	100,023
78,821	80,916	88,338	90,646	93,897	97,856	104,706
82,128	84,229	92,350	94,664	98,092	102,232	109,388
85,436	87,541	96,362	98,682	102,286	106,608	114,070
88,745	90,852	100,373	102,701	106,481	110,984	118,752
92,053	94,164	104,385	106,720	110,677	115,360	123,435
	55,662 58,970 62,278 65,586 68,896 72,204 75,512 78,821 82,128 85,436 88,745	55,662 57,734 58,970 61,046 62,278 64,357 65,586 67,670 68,896 70,981 72,204 74,293 75,512 77,605 78,821 80,916 82,128 84,229 85,436 87,541 88,745 90,852	55,662 57,734 60,256 58,970 61,046 64,268 62,278 64,357 68,280 65,586 67,670 72,291 68,896 70,981 76,304 72,204 74,293 80,314 75,512 77,605 84,327 78,821 80,916 88,338 82,128 84,229 92,350 85,436 87,541 96,362 88,745 90,852 100,373	55,662 57,734 60,256 62,512 58,970 61,046 64,268 66,531 62,278 64,357 68,280 70,550 65,586 67,670 72,291 74,569 68,896 70,981 76,304 78,589 72,204 74,293 80,314 82,608 75,512 77,605 84,327 86,627 78,821 80,916 88,338 90,646 82,128 84,229 92,350 94,664 85,436 87,541 96,362 98,682 88,745 90,852 100,373 102,701	BACHELORS B+15 MASTERS M+18 MM/CAGS/M+36 55,662 57,734 60,256 62,512 64,531 58,970 61,046 64,268 66,531 68,727 62,278 64,357 68,280 70,550 72,921 65,586 67,670 72,291 74,569 77,117 68,896 70,981 76,304 78,589 81,311 72,204 74,293 80,314 82,608 85,506 75,512 77,605 84,327 86,627 89,702 78,821 80,916 88,338 90,646 93,897 82,128 84,229 92,350 94,664 98,092 85,436 87,541 96,362 98,682 102,286 88,745 90,852 100,373 102,701 106,481	BACHELORS B+15 MASTERS M+18 MM/CAGS/M+36 M+60 55,662 57,734 60,256 62,512 64,531 67,224 58,970 61,046 64,268 66,531 68,727 71,600 62,278 64,357 68,280 70,550 72,921 75,976 65,586 67,670 72,291 74,569 77,117 80,352 68,896 70,981 76,304 78,589 81,311 84,728 72,204 74,293 80,314 82,608 85,506 89,104 75,512 77,605 84,327 86,627 89,702 93,480 78,821 80,916 88,338 90,646 93,897 97,856 82,128 84,229 92,350 94,664 98,092 102,232 85,436 87,541 96,362 98,682 102,286 106,608 88,745 90,852 100,373 102,701 106,481 110,984

FY26							
3.00%	BACHELORS	B+15	MASTERS	M+18	ADV STUDY: MM/CAGS/M+36	M+60	DOCTORATE
STEP 0	57,332	59,466	62,064	64,388	66,467	69,241	74,088
STEP 1	60,740	62,878	66,196	68,527	70,789	73,748	78,910
STEP 2	64,147	66,288	70,329	72,667	75,108	78,255	83,733
STEP 3	67,554	69,700	74,460	76,806	79,430	82,763	88,556
STEP 4	70,962	73,110	78,593	80,947	83,751	87,270	93,379
STEP 5	74,370	76,522	82,723	85,086	88,071	91,777	98,201
STEP 6	77,777	79,933	86,856	89,226	92,393	96,284	103,024
STEP 7	81,185	83,344	90,988	93,365	96,714	100,791	107,847
STEP 8	84,591	86,756	95,120	97,503	101,034	105,299	112,670
STEP 9	87,999	90,167	99,253	101,643	105,355	109,806	117,492
STEP 10	91,407	93,578	103,384	105,782	109,676	114,313	122,315
STEP 11	94,814	96,989	107,517	109,922	113,997	118,820	127,138

<u>Section 2</u>. <u>Post Graduate and Refresher Training.</u> During the first three (3) years of employment, newly hired teachers shall be required (based on available funding) to take Instruction for All Students or complete an equivalent course upon the approval of the Superintendent. This requirement shall qualify these teachers for graduate credit for advancement on the salary schedule.

Courses and/or intended plans of study that may lead to salary advancement must be submitted for the Superintendent's approval. For movement to any salary lane, an official transcript, showing credits earned, must be submitted to Human Resources. All grades shall meet the college or university's requirement for graduate credit. Any coursework applied towards advancement on the salary scale must be completed no later than September 1. Courses will not be counted more than once towards the completion of a degree or salary schedule advancement.

Section 3. Bachelor's Plus 15.

Teachers who have accumulated fifteen (15) semester hours in an accredited graduate program leading to a Master's Degree at an accredited institution will be placed in this salary lane.

Section 4. Master's Degree.

Teachers who have obtained a Master's Degree from an accredited institution and accredited program will be placed in the Master's salary lane at the appropriate step.

Section 5. Master's Plus 18.

Teachers who have earned eighteen (18) additional hours of graduate credit will be placed in the Master's Plus 18 salary lane at the appropriate step.

Section 6. Advanced Study

In order to qualify for the Advanced Study lane a teacher must have a Certificate of Advanced Credit in Graduate Study (CAGS), a second Master's degree, or the equivalent.

The equivalent must meet the following criteria:

- (a) All semester hours must be earned in accredited graduate schools.
- (b) There shall be no repetition of courses
- (c) A minimum of thirty-six (36) credits must be obtained as follows:
 - 1. 24 semester credits in an area of study or specialization
 - 2. 12 credits in areas related to the teacher's field of instruction

<u>Section 7.</u> Teachers with a CAGS, second Master's degree, or equivalent may advance to the M+60 level by the following procedure:

- (a) Earn 24 additional credits, beyond a CAGS, second Master's degree, or equivalent. All 24 additional credits needed for placement on this schedule must be earned after placement on the **ADVANCED**/M + 36 salary lane. The courses utilized to obtain the 24 additional credits must be relevant to the teacher's field, specialization, or a program of study related to education.
- (b) In order for courses to be relevant, their content must be in alignment with the district Professional Development Plan, Strategic Plan, School Improvement Plan, or Department of Elementary and Secondary Education regulations.
- (c) Courses that qualify for advancement to the M + 60 salary lane may be earned at an accredited graduate school or may be internal district offerings approved by the Superintendent of Schools.

<u>Section 8.</u> In case of a dispute over the acceptability of a course(s) to qualify a teacher under Section 4 or 6 above, the Association and the Committee will resolve the issue jointly at a meeting to be held at the request of either party.

Section 9. Doctorate.

The salary for a teacher with a doctorate shall be **1.07** times the salary at the corresponding step of the Masters +60 column.

<u>Section 10. Professional Incentive Program.</u> All professional staff members at maximum shall be eligible for the following incentive program:

- (a) Upon submission to and prior approval of the Superintendent's office of a program of professional advancement, said staff members may receive up to one hundred dollars (\$100) as an incentive to maintain high professional standards.
- (b) No staff members shall be eligible for incentive payment more than once in every three (3) year period from the effective date of this agreement.
- (c) A maximum of eighteen hundred dollars (\$1,800) will be allocated annually for the professional development program.
- (d) It is the School Committee's intent that the professional incentive program encourages continuing professional development.

The parties agree to this concept without precedent.

Any exceptions to the procedures in this article may be made by the Superintendent on a case by case basis.

Section 11: Travel Allowance (Mileage Allowance) Bargaining unit members who are required to use their personal vehicles in fulfilling their daily and/or weekly assignments shall be compensated for travel related expenses in accordance with the following mileage payment schedule: Frequency of Travel (on a weekly basis) Annual Payment: 1 day \$150.00, 2 days 200.00, 3 days 250.00, 4 days 300.00, 5 days 350.00.

ARTICLE XIII

JOB SHARING

<u>Section 1.</u> Job sharing shall mean the sharing of the performance of the duties and responsibilities of a full-time teaching position by two part-time teachers.

<u>Section 2.</u> A job-sharing situation will be considered only if two (2) professional status teachers jointly develop a plan for the job-share and approach the Superintendent with it together; individuals cannot request job-sharing.

<u>Section 3.</u> In approving job-sharing requests, the Superintendent will consider the merits of the request and the impact the job-share will have on the school system.

Section 4. In the event that one professional employee involved in job-sharing is unable to complete the

school year, the other individual must resume the position full-time or propose a plan acceptable to the Superintendent which would allow the continuation of the job-sharing arrangement.

<u>Section 5.</u> The application to job share must be submitted to the Superintendent by January 15th of the preceding school year.

<u>Section 6.</u> A job-sharing request may not exceed one year. Teachers may reapply the following year, however. The following working conditions shall apply to teachers participating in job sharing:

- (a) Both teachers will be present and on duty for the entire workday during the first week of school.
- (b) Both teachers will be required to attend the district's four professional development days.
- (c) Both teachers will be available for parent conferences.
- (d) Both teachers will arrange meeting times to evaluate students and mark report cards.
- (e) If there is a temporary staffing interruption due to illness or other reason, the teacher who is available for work will cover for the absent teacher, whenever possible, thereby eliminating the need for a substitute.
- (f) The number of job share positions shall be at the discretion of the Superintendent.

Section 7. It is understood in the application process that one teacher in a job share must opt out of District provided health insurance for the year and secure that benefit through another source. Should that teacher lose the alternative source of health insurance during the year the individual would be eligible for Cobra with the former insurance provider. The District also has the right to make the position full time should such a situation occur. The teacher without insurance would not be entitled to the Reduction in Force provisions of the contract until the beginning of the next school year.

ARTICLE XIV

HEALTH INSURANCE

<u>Section 1</u>. The Committee shall provide the insurance benefits available to state and municipal employees under the provisions of MGL Chapter 32B as currently provided and these benefits will not be changed or diminished unless agreed upon through collective bargaining in accordance with Chapter 150E and Chapter 23, Section 77 of the Acts of 1988.

<u>Section 2</u>. The Committee shall pay seventy five per cent (75%) of the cost of the individual or family coverage (whichever applies in this particular case) for health insurance benefits available to state and municipal employees under provision of Massachusetts General Laws, Chapter 32B.

<u>Section 3</u>. The plan design of the co -payment structure for **Medical**/Health **Insurance** is as follows:

Inpatient Hospital treatment	\$1,000
Outpatient Hospital treatment	\$500
Physician Office Visits	\$25
Specialist	\$35
CAT Scans, MRI and PET Scans	\$250
ER	\$150
Prescriptions	
Generic	\$10
Preferred	\$25
Non-Preferred	\$50
Out of Pocket Maximum	\$4K/8K (medical and RX)

The District agrees to maintain a Health Reimbursement Account (HRA). All inpatient and outpatient co-pays will be <u>fully</u> reimbursed. The co-pay for the first PET Scan, CAT Scan or MRI in each fiscal year is the responsibility of the policy holder. Subsequent High Tech imaging will be fully reimbursed.

Full inpatient and outpatient reimbursement will remain in place as long as this plan design is in effect. The deductibles for all other co-pays will be evaluated and if necessary, re-negotiated no later than May 1 of each year.

Inpatient and outpatient reimbursement which will be paid as they occur. The district will provide a reimbursement form.

The District will continue to provide members the opportunity to participate in a Flexible Spending Account (FSA).

<u>Section 4</u>. This Health Reimbursement Account will remain in place as long as this higher co-pay plan design is in effect. Any changes will be subject to negotiation.

<u>Section 5</u>. For a retired employee and for the surviving spouse of an active or retired employee, the District will pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the health insurance premium of an individual or family plan which provides the same level of benefits as provided by the current carriers. If the active or retired employee or spouse is eligible for Medicare, the District will pay seventy-five percent (75%) of the premium cost for a Medicare extension plan with the same level of benefits as currently provided.

<u>Section 6</u>. The above benefits shall also apply to separated employees to the extent provided or required by federal (COBRA) provisions.

<u>Section 7</u>. The Committee shall establish and maintain a Section 125 pretax funding premium conversion plan for health insurance payments for all members of the bargaining unit.

ARTICLE XV

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT AND EDUCATIONAL IMPROVEMENT

<u>Section 1</u>. Each year of the contract, the Committee will fund a Professional Development Course Reimbursement Pool of \$10,000 specifically for conferences, workshops, or seminars (not graduate coursework/credits). The purpose of this pool is to reimburse employees for professional development (ex: conferences relating to the educator's current position) taken in accordance with the guidelines established by a Professional Development **Workshop/Conference** Committee **and subject to the approval of the Principal.** If there are funds still remaining after May 1, of that same year, these funds will roll into the \$20,000 general **tuition reimbursement** (course reimbursement) fund in Section 2 in this Article.

<u>Section 2</u>. Each year of the contract, the Committee will fund a **Tuition Reimbursement** Pool of \$20,000. The purpose of this Pool is to reimburse employees for courses taken in accordance with the guidelines established by a Professional Development Committee consisting of three (3) administrators and three (3) Association members. Requests for reimbursement must be submitted by June 1st.

When additional training is required to maintain state licensure for the positions of Speech & Language Pathologist (SLP), Physical Therapists (PT), Occupational Therapists (OT), Behavior Specialist, BCBAs, School Psychologists, and School Adjustment Counselors, when graduate credits are not available, Continuing Education Credits (CEUs) may be requested for pre-approval from the Superintendent.

ARTICLE XVI

OTHER STIPENDS

<u>Section 1</u>. <u>Guidance Counselors.</u> Guidance Counselors, including the Guidance Department Chair, shall be employed during the week after the closing of school in June and the week before school opens for a total of one hundred ninety-five (195) days.

No counselor shall work more than three (3) weeks during the summer months unless mutually agreed to by the Superintendent and the Director of Guidance.

The remuneration of these personnel shall be based one one-hundred eighty-fifth (1/185) of each individual's annual salary times the number of days employed during the summer.

Section 2. For all positions covered by this agreement, the parties agree that it is in the best interest of Algonquin students to have their educators serve as coaches and activity advisors. If all qualifications are equal, an Algonquin Regional High School employee will be given preference over a non-school employee.

<u>Section 3. Extracurricular Stipends.</u> Advisors of certain extracurricular activities, which demand extended time beyond school responsibilities, should receive additional remuneration as follows:

	2.25%	3.00%	3.00%
	2023 - 2024	2024 - 2025	2025 - 2026
ALGONQUIN WRITING CENTER (AWC)	\$4,995.00	\$5,144.85	\$5,299.20
AP COORDINATOR	\$2,377.31	\$2,448.63	\$2,522.09
ATHLETIC EVENT TICKET TAKERS (PER GAME)	\$56.24	\$57.92	\$59.66
ATHLETIC FACILTY MANAGER(S) 2@	\$3,706.56	\$3,817.76	\$3,932.29
BEST BUDDIES PROGRAM ADVISOR - 2@	\$2,012.28	\$2,072.65	\$2,134.83
COMMUNITY ACTION ADVISOR	\$2,007.17	\$2,067.38	\$2,129.40
COMPUTER TEAM ADVISOR	\$1,990.81	\$2,050.53	\$2,112.05
DECA ADVISOR	\$2,007.17	\$2,067.38	\$2,129.40
DETENTION HALL SUPERVISOR	\$3,709.63	\$3,820.92	\$3,935.55
DIGITAL CONTENT CREATOR AND COACH	\$2,810.00	\$2,894.30	\$2,981.13
DIRECTOR OF STUDENT ACTIVITIES	\$1,482.63	\$1,527.10	\$1,572.92
DIVERSITY AWARENESS ADVISOR	\$2,008.19	\$2,068.44	\$2,130.49
DRAMA ADVISOR - SPRING	\$4,077.73	\$4,200.06	\$4,326.06
DRAMA DIRECTOR	\$5,096.14	\$5,249.02	\$5,406.49
DRAMA GUILD -ADVISOR	\$2,008.19	\$2,068.44	\$2,130.49
DRAMA SET DESIGNER	\$4,077.73	\$4,200.06	\$4,326.06
FRESHMEN CLASS ADVISOR - 2@	\$1,147.25	\$1,181.66	\$1,217.11
GENDER AND SEXUALITY ALLIANCE (GSA)	\$1,964.00	\$2,022.92	\$2,083.61
GRADE 9 TEAM LEADERS	\$1,924.35	\$1,982.08	\$2,041.54
HARBINGER ADVISOR	\$5,107.39	\$5,260.61	\$5,418.43
HEALTH AND OCCUPATIONAL SCIENCES ASSN. (HOSA)	\$2,628.00	\$2,706.84	\$2,788.05
JAZZ CHOIR DIRECTOR	\$4,223.95	\$4,350.67	\$4,481.19
JAZZ I ENSEMBLE DIRECTOR - 2@**	\$4,223.95	\$4,350.67	\$4,481.19
JUNIOR CLASS ADVISOR- 2@	\$2,273.02	\$2,341.21	\$2,411.44
LATIN CLUB ADVISOR	\$1,147.25	\$1,181.66	\$1,217.11
MARCHING BAND ASSISTANT	\$2,820.06	\$2,904.66	\$2,991.80
MARCHING BAND COLOR GUARD DIRECTOR	\$2,008.19	\$2,068.44	\$2,130.49
MARCHING BAND DIRECTOR	\$4,919.25	\$5,066.82	\$5,218.83
MATH HONOR SOCIETY	\$1,818.00	\$1,872.54	\$1,928.72
MATH TEAM ADVISOR, VARSITY	\$3,391.63	\$3,493.38	\$3,598.18
MATH TEAM ADVISOR, JUNIOR VARSITY	\$1,702.46	\$1,753.54	\$1,806.14
MENTOR CO-COORDINATOR - 2@	\$961.15	\$989.98	\$1,019.68
MENTORS	\$636.00	\$655.07	\$674.73
MOCK TRIAL ADVISOR	\$1,147.25	\$1,181.66	\$1,217.11
MODEL UN ADVISOR - 2@	\$1,155.43	\$1,190.09	\$1,225.79

MUSICAL - MUSIC DIRECTOR	\$3,539.90	\$3,646.09	\$3,755.47
MUSICAL CHOREOGRAPHER	\$1,962.18	\$2,021.04	\$2,081.67
MUSICAL COSTUME DESIGNER	\$1,179.97	\$1,215.36	\$1,251.82
MUSICAL SET DESIGN	\$3,146.23	\$3,240.62	\$3,337.84
MUSICAL STAGE DIRECTOR	\$3,933.56	\$4,051.56	\$4,173.11
MUSICAL VOCAL COACH AND REHEARSAL PIANIST	\$1,967.29	\$2,026.31	\$2,087.10
NATIONAL ART SOCIETY ADVISOR	\$1,858.91	\$1,914.67	\$1,972.11
NATIONAL BUSINESS HONOR SOCIETY ADVISOR 2@	\$1,858.91	\$1,914.67	\$1,972.11
NATIONAL HONOR SOCIETY ADVISOR - 2@	\$1,718.82	\$1,770.39	\$1,823.50
PEER MENTOR ADVISOR - 2@	\$1,017.39	\$1,047.91	\$1,079.35
PSAT COORDINATOR	\$463.19	\$477.09	\$491.40
PUBLICATIONS PHOTOGRAPHY	\$1,858.91	\$1,914.67	\$1,972.11
SACHEM ADVISOR	\$1,430.48	\$1,473.39	\$1,517.59
SADD ADVISOR - 2@ (TASC)	\$1,667.70	\$1,717.73	\$1,769.26
SAT EVENING TEACHER(S)	\$2,330.28	\$2,400.19	\$2,472.19
SCIENCE CLUB ADVISOR, JUNIOR VARSITY	\$2,008.19	\$2,068.44	\$2,130.49
SCIENCE CLUB ADVISOR, VARSITY	\$2,687.13	\$2,767.74	\$2,850.78
SCIENCE HONOR SOCIETY	\$1,818.00	\$1,872.54	\$1,928.72
SENIOR CLASS ADVISOR - 2@	\$3,131.92	\$3,225.88	\$3,322.65
SOPHOMORE CLASS ADVISOR - 2@	\$1,147.25	\$1,181.66	\$1,217.11
STUDENT COUNCIL/ADVISORY COUNCIL ADVISOR	\$4,034.79	\$4,155.83	\$4,280.50
SUBSTITUTE CALLER	\$3,993.89	\$4,113.70	\$4,237.11
SUBSTITUTE SCHEDULER	\$1,722.91	\$1,774.60	\$1,827.84
TRI-M ADVISOR 2@	\$1,858.91	\$1,914.67	\$1,972.11
U.S. ROBOTICS ADVISOR	\$3,391.63	\$3,493.38	\$3,598.18
WEBMASTER	\$2,810.00	\$2,894.30	\$2,981.13
YEARBOOK ADVISOR, PUBLICATION AND BUSINESS	\$5,067.51	\$5,219.54	\$5,376.12

Any additional stipend positions desired for consideration need to be submitted to the principal with documentation by October 1 of the year prior to desired implementation. Some clubs/stipends may have shared responsibilities and share the stipend or more than one person appointed to the position depending on enrollment.

Student Club Advisor (See Appendix D)			
Club Level Stipend		Level A	Level B	Level C
2023 -24	2.25%	\$331.15	\$662.58	\$993.43
2024 -25	3.00%	\$341.08	\$682.46	\$1,023.23
2025 -26	3.00%	\$351.31	\$702.93	\$1,053.93

2023-2026 ATHLETIC COACHING SCHEDULE

Group A VARSITY COACHES- Footbal	1
----------------------------------	---

Group B VARSITY COACHES- Basketball, Hockey, Soccer

Group C VARSITY COACHES- Baseball, Field hockey, Lacrosse, Softball, Volleyball, Rugby,

Track- Spring, Track- Winter

Group D VARSITY COACHES- Gymnastics, Swimming, Wrestling, Cross Country

Group E VARSITY COACHES- Cheerleading, Golf, Skiing, Tennis

Group F JUNIOR VARSITY 1 COACHES, VARSITY ASSISTANT COACHES

Group G JUNIOR VARSITY 2 (FORMERLY FRESHMAN) COACHES, CLUB SPORT

COACHES

FY24	2.25%						
	Group A	Group B	Group C	Group D	Group E	Group F	Group G
Step 0	\$8,256	\$5,082	\$4,064	\$3,810	\$3,049	\$2,286	\$1,778
Step 1	\$8,734	\$5,398	\$4,382	\$4,129	\$3,304	\$2,509	\$1,906
Step 2	\$9,210	\$5,716	\$4,700	\$4,446	\$3,557	\$2,732	\$2,032
Step 3	\$9,685	\$6,034	\$5,018	\$4,764	\$3,810	\$2,953	\$2,160
Step 4	\$10,163	\$6,351	\$5,336	\$5,082	\$4,064	\$3,176	\$2,286
Step 5	\$10,639	\$6,668	\$5,653	\$5,398	\$4,319	\$3,399	\$2,413
Step 6	\$11,116	\$6,986	\$5,970	\$5,716	\$4,574	\$3,620	\$2,541
Step 7	\$11,593	\$7,305	\$6,288	\$6,034	\$4,827	\$3,842	\$2,666
Step 8	\$12,068	\$7,622	\$6,606	\$6,351	\$5,082	\$4,064	\$2,795
Step 9	\$12,544	\$7,940	\$6,923	\$6,668	\$5,336	\$4,287	\$2,922
Step 10	\$13,021	\$8,256	\$7,240	\$6,986	\$5,590	\$4,510	\$3,049

FY25	3.00%						
	Group A	Group B	Group C	Group D	Group E	Group F	Group G
Step 0	\$8,504	\$5,234	\$4,186	\$3,924	\$3,140	\$2,355	\$1,831
Step 1	\$8,996	\$5,560	\$4,513	\$4,253	\$3,403	\$2,584	\$1,963
Step 2	\$9,486	\$5,888	\$4,841	\$4,580	\$3,664	\$2,814	\$2,093
Step 3	\$9,976	\$6,215	\$5,169	\$4,907	\$3,924	\$3,041	\$2,225
Step 4	\$10,467	\$6,542	\$5,496	\$5,234	\$4,186	\$3,271	\$2,355
Step 5	\$10,958	\$6,868	\$5,822	\$5,560	\$4,449	\$3,501	\$2,486
Step 6	\$11,449	\$7,195	\$6,149	\$5,888	\$4,711	\$3,729	\$2,618
Step 7	\$11,940	\$7,524	\$6,477	\$6,215	\$4,971	\$3,958	\$2,746
Step 8	\$12,430	\$7,851	\$6,804	\$6,542	\$5,234	\$4,186	\$2,878
Step 9	\$12,920	\$8,178	\$7,131	\$6,868	\$5,496	\$4,416	\$3,009
Step 10	\$13,411	\$8,504	\$7,457	\$7,195	\$5,758	\$4,645	\$3,140

FY26	3.00%						
	Group A	Group B	Group C	Group D	Group E	Group F	Group G
Step 0	\$8,759	\$5,391	\$4,312	\$4,042	\$3,234	\$2,425	\$1,886
Step 1	\$9,265	\$5,727	\$4,649	\$4,380	\$3,505	\$2,662	\$2,022
Step 2	\$9,770	\$6,064	\$4,986	\$4,717	\$3,774	\$2,898	\$2,156
Step 3	\$10,275	\$6,401	\$5,324	\$5,054	\$4,042	\$3,133	\$2,292
Step 4	\$10,781	\$6,738	\$5,661	\$5,391	\$4,312	\$3,369	\$2,425
Step 5	\$11,286	\$7,074	\$5,997	\$5,727	\$4,582	\$3,606	\$2,560
Step 6	\$11,793	\$7,411	\$6,334	\$6,064	\$4,852	\$3,841	\$2,696
Step 7	\$12,299	\$7,749	\$6,671	\$6,401	\$5,121	\$4,076	\$2,829
Step 8	\$12,802	\$8,086	\$7,008	\$6,738	\$5,391	\$4,312	\$2,965
Step 9	\$13,307	\$8,423	\$7,345	\$7,074	\$5,661	\$4,548	\$3,100
Step 10	\$13,814	\$8,759	\$7,681	\$7,411	\$5,931	\$4,785	\$3,234

All coaching positions will be one-year appointments and be posted annually. Job Shares will be allowed upon approval by the Athletic Director.

The filling of ALL STIPENDIARY POSITIONS in this agreement is subject to annual funding.

DEPARTMENT CHAIRS

Department Chairs:

2023-2024	2024-2025	2025-2026	
2.25%	3.0%	3.0%	
\$10,389	\$10,700	\$11,021	

Department Chairs will be appointed for two years. The departments are as follows:

Applied Arts and Technology

English

Science

Fine and Performing Arts

Guidance

Health and Fitness

Mathematics

Science

Social Studies

World Languages

Student Services

There is no restriction on the number of two-year appointments to the position, but all department members are encouraged to apply.

All stipends will increase annually by the same percentage as the salary schedule.

Except for Department Chairs, all other stipendiary positions are annual appointments. Stipends will be posted by April 15 each year.

ARTICLE XVII

TEXTBOOKS

<u>Section 1</u>. The Committee guarantees that it will provide sufficient funds to ensure that each pupil in a classroom has textbooks for **their** own use.

<u>Section 2</u>. Recognizing the professional competence and skills of the staff in relation to textbook selection, the Committee agrees that the selection of textbooks to be used in Algonquin Regional High School shall be cooperatively arrived at through joint consultation among teachers, department chairs and administration subject to final approval of the School Committee.

ARTICLE XVIII

USE OF SCHOOL FACILITIES

The Association will have the right to use school buildings for meetings and recreational purposes. The Association will be responsible for custodial costs incurred. The date and time of meetings will be mutually arranged with the Principal.

ARTICLE XIX

TEACHER EMPLOYMENT AND ASSIGNMENTS

<u>Section 1</u>. Teachers shall be notified in writing of their assignments for the ensuing year, including subjects and ability groupings on or before June 20 of each year.

<u>Section 2</u>. Teachers who desire a change in subject assignment shall file a written statement of such desire with the Principal no later than April 1. Changes necessitated by emergency situations will be mutually arranged between teacher and Principal.

<u>Section 3</u>. Upon initial employment, step placement will be at the discretion of the Superintendent.

ARTICLE XX

TEACHER EVALUATION

<u>Section 1</u>. Teachers will be given a copy of any evaluation report prepared by their evaluator and will have the right to discuss with their superiors such a report before it is submitted to Central Administration or put in their personnel file.

<u>Section 2</u>. Any credible complaints regarding a teacher made to the Administration or Department Chair by any parent, student or other person will be promptly called to the teacher's attention. At any time when a teacher's ability, technique or professional manner is questioned, it will be brought to the teacher's attention promptly.

<u>Section 3</u>. No teacher with professional teacher status will be disciplined, reprimanded, reduced in rank or compensation, or deprived of any professional advantage without just cause.

<u>Section 4</u>. The **Regional Educator Evaluation** Instruments (for both tutors and teachers) are hereby incorporated into this Agreement by reference. They will be available on the District's Website under staff resources. Any substantive changes must be ratified by both parties.

<u>Section 5</u>. Any violation of the evaluation instrument or process shall be grievable.

ARTICLE XXI

VACANCIES AND PROMOTIONS

<u>Section 1</u>. All vacancies of more than eight (8) weeks in promotional positions, except employees of Superintendency Union No. 3, but including specialists and/or special projects teachers and coaches, shall be filled pursuant to the following procedures:

- (a) Such vacancies shall be adequately publicized, which shall mean, as a minimum, that a notice shall be posted via electronic formats and include the duties and qualifications for the position. During the months of July and August, postings will be provided to all district users.
- (b) Such notices shall be posted as far in advance as possible, ordinarily at least thirty (30) days before the final date when applications must be submitted and in no event less than two (2) weeks before such date except in emergency situations, at which time the Superintendent will make appointments not to exceed thirty (30) days in duration.
- (c) Unit members who desire to apply for such vacancies shall submit their applications in writing to the Superintendent or **their** authorized agent within the limit specified in the notice.
- (d) All stipend positions (extracurricular, coaching, department chairs/lead teachers) shall be communicated via email and posted electronically each year by April 15th, and all interested candidates shall be given due consideration. Applications shall be due no later than May 15th and appointments will be made by June 1. The sole basis for the appointment shall be the qualifications of the applicant.

Educators (applicants) will have a least 10 school days from the day of the posting to submit an online application indicating their interest in the position.

If there is more than one applicant, there will be an interview process with a joint committee including one member of the association with the administration.

(e) All applicants must be notified, by June 1, of their appointment to any stipend position.

<u>Section 2</u>. Promotional vacancies are defined as follows: positions paying a salary differential and/or positions on the administrative-supervisory or specialist level.

<u>Section 3</u>. All appointments to the aforesaid vacancies and openings shall be made without regard to race, color, religion or religious creed, national or ethnic origin, age, disability or handicap, sex or gender, gender identity, sexual orientation, military or Veteran's status, genetic information or any other characteristic protected under applicable Federal, State or local law.

<u>Section 4</u>. Qualified applicants, on request, shall be entitled to meet with the Superintendent prior to the appointment. Unsuccessful candidates from the Algonquin faculty shall be notified in writing.

ARTICLE XXII

TEACHER FILES

All teacher files shall be maintained under the following circumstances:

<u>Section 1</u>. No material, excluding references and information obtained in the process of evaluating the teacher for employment, which is derogatory to a teacher's conduct, service, character or personality shall be placed in the files unless the teacher has had an opportunity to read such material. The teacher shall acknowledge that the teacher has read such material by affixing their signature on the actual copy to be filed with the understanding that such signature merely signifies that the teacher has read the material to be filed and does not necessarily indicate agreement with its content.

<u>Section 2</u>. The teacher shall have the right to answer any material filed, and the teacher's answer shall be reviewed by the Principal and the Superintendent and attached to the file copy.

<u>Section 3</u>. Upon written request by the teacher, the teacher shall be given access to the teacher's file and shall be allowed to reproduce any material in the file excluding references and information obtained in the process of evaluating the teacher for employment.

<u>Section 4.</u> The employee's singular personnel file is maintained by the Superintendent's office.

ARTICLE XXIII

NON-TEACHING DUTIES

<u>Section 1</u>. The School Committee and the Association agree that a teacher's primary responsibility is to teach. Therefore, teachers shall not be required to perform the following duties:

(a) Although teachers may be required to collect and transmit money to be used for

Name

educational purposes, they will not be held responsible for the loss of any money collected unless such loss is the result of failure to follow school regulations.

- (b) Collecting money for or the selling of lunch tickets.
- (c) Teachers shall not be required to perform custodial duties.

<u>Section 2</u>. Clerical duties, which do not involve professional judgment, shall be kept to an absolute minimum.

ARTICLE XXIV

DUES DEDUCTION

<u>Section 1</u>. The Committee agrees to deduct monthly from the salaries of its employees dues for the Algonquin Teachers Association, Massachusetts Teachers Association, and National Education Association, or any one of such Associations as said teachers individually and voluntarily authorize the Committee to deduct, and to transmit monies promptly to such Association or Associations. Teacher authorization will be in writing in the form which follows:

	Address	
for regular pay for the year an for any school	I hereby request and authorize the Algonquin Regional School District Committee to by earnings and transmit to the Association checked below an amount sufficient to provide ment of membership dues as certified by such Association in equal monthly payments discreted succeeding school years. I understand the Committee will discontinue such deductions year only if I notify the Committee in writing to do so not later than thirty (30) days printed the school year.	
accordance wi	I hereby waive all rights and claims for said monies so deducted and transmitted in the this authorization and relieve the School Committee and all its officers from any o.	
Teache	r Organization:	
	Algonquin Regional Teachers Association	
	Massachusetts Teachers Association	

National Education Association

Date Signature

<u>Section 2</u>. Each of the Associations named in Section 1 above will certify to the Committee in writing the current rates of its membership dues. Any Association which will change the rate of its membership dues will give the Committee thirty (30) days written notice prior to the effective date of change.

<u>Section 3</u>. No later than September 30 of each year, the Committee will provide the Association with a list of those employees who have voluntarily authorized the Committee to deduct dues for any of the Associations named in Section 1.

<u>Section 4</u>. The Association shall indemnify and save the Committee and/or the Towns harmless against all claims, demands, suits or other forms of liability which may arise by reason of any action taken in making deductions and remitting the same to the Association pursuant to this Article.

<u>Section 5</u>. If a teacher who is absent on account of sickness, leave of absence, or for any other reason has no earnings due him for the month, no deduction will be made from the employee for that month. The Association will arrange collection of dues for the month directly with the member.

ARTICLE XXV

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES

<u>Section 1</u>. A grievance is hereby defined to mean a dispute involving the meaning, interpretation or application of this contract.

<u>Section 2</u>. Failure at any step of this procedure to communicate the decision of a grievance within the specified time limits to the aggrieved employee and the President of the Association shall permit the aggrieved party or parties to proceed to the next step.

<u>Section 3</u>. Failure at any step of this procedure to appeal the grievance to the next step within the specified time limits shall be deemed to be acceptance of the decision rendered at that step.

<u>Section 4</u>. No reprisals of any kind shall be taken by any party of this contract against any party in interest, any witness, any member of the Grievance Committee of the Association, or any participant in the grievance procedure by reason of such participation.

<u>Section 5</u>. A grievance that affects a group or class of teachers from a different building or department or is of a general nature may be submitted in writing by the Association to the Superintendent directly with a copy to the Principal, and processing of such grievance shall commence at Level 2.

<u>Section 6</u>. If any employee covered by this contract shall present any grievance without representation by the Association, the disposition, if any, of the grievance shall be consistent with the provisions of this contract. The Association shall be permitted to be heard at each level of the procedure under which the grievance shall be considered.

<u>Section 7</u>. When a grievance arises, the grievance must be filed within thirty (30) school days from the day of the event upon which the grievance is based or from the date when the teacher had or should have had knowledge of the event.

Level One.

A teacher with a grievance shall present it to the Principal within thirty (30) school days of the event upon which the grievance is based. Any meeting with reference to the above shall be held during non-school hours.

Level Two.

- (a) In the event that the grievance shall not have been disposed of to the satisfaction of the aggrieved employee at Level One or in the event that no decision has been reached within ten (10) school days after presentation of the grievance to the Principal, the grievance shall be reduced to writing and referred to the Superintendent within five (5) school days of the disposition under Level One.
- (b) The Superintendent shall represent the School Committee at this level of the grievance procedure. Within ten (10) school days after receipt of the written grievance by the Superintendent, **their** designee shall meet with the aggrieved employee and the said Principal in an effort to settle the grievance. The aggrieved employee shall have the right to be represented by the Association at this level.
- (c) If the subject matter of the grievance involves any action of the Superintendent or building Principal pursuant to Chapter 71, Sections 38, 40, 41, 42D, 43, 47A and 59B, and if the grievance has not been disposed of to the satisfaction of the aggrieved party, the Association within ten (10) school days after the Level Two meeting may initiate arbitration by giving written notice of its intention to the Superintendent.

Level Three.

In the event that the grievance shall not have been disposed of at Level Two, or in the event that no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the Level Two meeting and if the grievance is subject to the authority of the Committee, the grievance will be referred in writing to the School Committee. At its next regular School Committee meeting or at a special meeting called for the purpose of considering the grievance, the School Committee shall meet with the Association in an effort to settle the grievance.

Level Four.

If the grievance involves a personnel matter as defined in Level Two, Part (c) above and has

not been disposed of at Level Two to the satisfaction of the Association, or if the grievance has not been disposed of at Level Three or in the event that no decision has been rendered within ten (10) school days after the Level Three meeting, the Association may refer in writing within ten (10) school days after the decision rendered at Level Two or Level Three as the case may be, initiate arbitration by giving written notice to the Superintendent of this intention. The arbitrator shall be selected by agreement between the parties. If the parties are unable to agree upon an arbitrator, the selection shall be made by the American Arbitration Association in accordance with its rules and regulations.

- (a) The arbitrator shall be without power or authority to modify or alter the terms of this contract.
- (b) The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing. This decision shall be final and binding on both parties.
- (c) The costs for the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the School Committee and the Association.

ARTICLE XXVI

REDUCTION IN FORCE (RIF)

<u>Section 1</u>. In the event that a reduction in the number of teachers with professional teacher status (PTS) is deemed advisable by the Superintendent, the following rules shall apply in the determination of which teachers are to be laid off:

- (a) A teacher with PTS shall not be laid off if there is a teacher without PTS whose position the teacher with PTS is qualified to fill.
- (b) Reduction in force of a teacher with PTS within the targeted disciplines shall be based on a teacher's job performance and the best interest of the students, which is defined as the teacher's most recent summative overall evaluation ratings as compared to other teachers' most recent summative overall evaluation ratings (with ratings of Meets the Standards of the Algonquin Regional School District for evaluations prior to 2013-2014). Proficient and Exemplary will be considered equal.

If there is a tie using the above criteria, the tie shall be broken by seniority, with the least senior teacher in the discipline targeted laid off first. If there is still a tie, versatility and/or licensure will be the determining factor. A teacher's placement on the salary schedule shall not be a factor in the consideration of layoffs.

Seniority shall be defined by the length of uninterrupted service in full-time equivalent years and days working under a valid license, from the most recent commencement of service. A seniority list by name shall be provided to the Association by November 15. Disputes over the list shall be submitted to the Superintendent within 30 calendar days of distribution. The Superintendent will respond in writing within

30 calendar days.

Unpaid leaves of absence shall not cause an interruption in seniority, but shall not be counted toward credit. Professional status teachers who face the prospect of employment termination, as a result of a reduction in force, shall be informed in writing by May 1 of the school year preceding the anticipated reduction, when feasible.

Teachers with professional teacher status who have been reduced shall be eligible for continued participation in group insurance plans at their own expense to the extent provided by federal (COBRA) regulations.

Section 2. Teacher Recall Procedures.

In the event of a layoff or a reduction in force, teachers who have been rated Proficient or Exemplary at the time of layoff are eligible for recall. No new employee shall be hired for a permanent position until such time as every eligible employee on the recall list has been given an opportunity to apply in writing to fill the vacancy.

(a) The Superintendent shall maintain a complete list of all professional personnel formerly under the contract who are, by virtue of declining student enrollment and/or school closings, dismissed. It is the applicant's responsibility to furnish current information and an updated resume.

A teacher's name shall be maintained on the recall list until September 1st two (2) years after the date on which the layoff occurs. Personnel on this list are encouraged to provide notification if they no longer wish to be considered for recall.

- 1. Names still listed at the end of the recall period will be dropped.
- 2. Individuals who refuse a job offer (of equal FTE) will be dropped from the list except for verified medical reasons. Medical reasons do not extend the recall period.

When a vacancy occurs, the personnel department will notify each qualified former employee on the recall list by mail that a vacancy exists. Those interested must express this interest in writing within a 14-day calendar period from the date of the notification's postmark.

Upon recall, employees shall advance one step on the salary schedule, provided that they are employed by the District (90) days in the year directly preceding their layoff, and have satisfied all other contractual requirements. PTS returning to service during the recall period shall have their accrued sick days and seniority restored. Any teacher with professional teacher status electing to be placed on such recall list will be deemed to have waived his/her hearing rights under MGL, Chapter 71, Section 42. This section F does not abrogate the teacher's right to the grievance procedure as described herein.

ARTICLE XXVII

LONGEVITY

Bargaining unit members will receive longevity payments for their continuous years of service at Algonquin Regional High School in accordance with the following schedule:

	Adjusted	+5%FY24
In years 13, 14 and 15	\$1,500	\$1,575
In years 16, 17, 18	\$1,650	\$1,733
In years 19, 20	\$1,700	\$1,785
In years 21, 22, 23	\$1,750	\$1,838
In years 24, 25	\$1,800	\$1,890
In years 26, 27, 28	\$1,850	\$1,943
In years 29, 30	\$1,950	\$2,048
In years 31+	\$2,200	\$2,310

Any bargaining unit members having been hired under contract of 90 school days will be credited on September 1 of the ensuing school year with a full year of service toward the longevity schedule.

ARTICLE XXVIII

EARLY RETIREMENT INCENTIVE PROGRAM

<u>Section 1</u>. Upon written notice of intent to retire, a teacher who has or will have at least twenty (20) years of service on the effective retirement date will receive additional compensation according to the following:

For retirement effective June 30	With 2 years advance	With 1 year advance
having attained the age of:	notice by January 15 th	notice by January 15 th
53-57	14% each year	20%
58-59	12% each year	15%
60-61	10% each year	12%
62	8% each year	10%

<u>Section 2</u>. Written notice must be received by the Superintendent no later than January 15th. Early retirement compensation cannot be considered for Massachusetts Teachers Retirement benefits. Payment of the early retirement compensation shall be distributed in two equal payments, January and June, according to the appropriate schedule.

<u>Section 3</u>. Any teacher who elects to retire with advanced notice and who does not fill **their** retirement objective must repay all incentive compensation received.

ARTICLE XXIX

SAVINGS AND SEPARABILITY

<u>Section 1</u>. If any provision of this contract or any application thereof shall be found contrary to law, then such provision or application shall not be deemed valid and subsisting to the extent permitted by law, but all other provisions or applications will continue in full force and effect.

<u>Section 2</u>. If in any year covered by this Agreement the Committee fails to obtain the necessary votes required by law to fund this Agreement, the Committee and/or ARTA reserves the right to reopen the Agreement on all economic items.

ARTICLE XXX

TUTORS

The Algonquin Regional Teachers Association and the Northborough-Southborough Regional School Committee agree to the inclusion of tutors in the recognition clause of Unit A.

The following sections of the Articles noted below will apply:

Article VI	Operational Conditions - Sections 1 and 3
Article VIII	Sick Leave Policy – Sections 1 and 6
Article IX	Time off Benefits – Section 1 a, b, c, d
Article XVI	Other Stipends – Sections 2 and 3

The following Articles will not apply to the tutor position as they are based on the work schedule and/or job classification: Article VII, Article XI, Article XII, Article XIII, Article XXVIII. Tutors will be evaluated annually.

Tutors' Salary Schedule

			12 2 1111 1 7 2	, 0110 01 0110				
			REGIONA	L TUTO	R SALARY	SCHED	ULE	
2.25%				2023-20	24			
STEP	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	\$30.50	\$31.69	\$32.99	\$34.25	\$35.66	\$37.08	\$37.44	\$38.84
								-
3.00%				2024-20	25			
STEP	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	\$31.42	\$32.64	\$33.98	\$35.28	\$36.73	\$38.19	\$38.57	\$40.01
3.00%				2025-20	26			
STEP	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8
	\$32.36	\$33.62	\$34.99	\$36.34	\$37.84	\$39.33	\$39.72	\$41.21

ARTICLE XXXI

DURATION

This Agreement shall be effective as of the first day of the **2023-24** school year and will continue in effect to and including the day prior to the start of the **2026-27** school year and will thereafter automatically renew itself for successive terms of one (1) year unless by November 15 prior to the expiration of the Agreement year involved, either the Committee or the Association shall have given written notice of its desire to modify or terminate this Agreement.

In witness, whereof we have fixed our signatures:

For the Committee	For the Association		
DocuSigned by:	DocuSigned by: Chushma M. Smuth 523A6696B4644B7		
Sean O'Shea,	Christina Smith,		
Regional School Committee Chair	ARTA Co-President		
DATE:	DATE:		
	DocuSigned by:		
	Nicole Ruffo,		
	ARTA, Co-President		
	5/9/2023		
	DATE:		

NON-CONTRACTUAL MEMORANDA OF UNDERSTANDING

- A Labor Management committee consisting of up to 5 Association members and up to 5 members of management (designated by the Supt.) will meet at least twice a year at the request of either party to discuss issues that affect school climate.
- Professional Membership Reimbursement
- Upon request, the Principal may provide relief to a teacher writing college recommendations.
- There will be a Committee created to study the feasibility of providing all educators with a PLC during the first year of this Agreement. The Committee will also review and make recommendations on extended consecutive teaching periods.
- Class Preparations Will meet with administration to review if high school administration changes.
- Healthcare Reimbursement Account form language change June 30 deadline and submit even if you do not have an invoice.

APPENDIX A

PRIMARY FOCUS

(Department Chairs)

Department chairs are key members of the School Based Leadership Team at Algonquin. They are advocates for the best possible education for students. They support professional standards in curriculum and instruction. They remain current in the knowledge of their disciplines, contribute to a climate of collaboration, and actively support the district's core values. They are active participants in the district commitment to school-based leadership and shared decision making.

The responsibilities of department chairs include the support, guidance, and observations of personnel; coaching and feedback; collection of data and evidence; participation in the leadership and management of the school; development of curriculum within the context of the school's core values; and leadership in the professional growth of the instructional staff. They also contribute to the development of an overall educational program at Algonquin, coordinating the curricula in their department with those of other departments and contributing to those processes that unify and integrate the school's program.

The Algonquin vision of the future of departmental leadership is consistent with the concept of *teachers leading teachers* as the school continues to move toward school-based leadership and educational reform. Department chairs, therefore, are team developers and team leaders in their own areas of expertise, at the same time exercising visionary "think school" leadership in concert with administrators and the School Council. Their functions, therefore, extend well beyond the traditional parameters of subject matter specialist, staff supervisor and developer, and departmental manager.

Education reform: As new instructional standards evolve, so do educational leadership standards. The new leadership standards revolve around school based management concepts and principles. More decisions are made closer to the student. Restructuring begins with content as a given. Yet we must reform our schools so that our students will develop more effective processes and skills with which to address content. In that context, department chairs are even more vital as links in the educational process than they have been in the past. Indeed, their roles need restructuring as secondary education is reformed.

Specific Functions (Department Chairs)

1. <u>Algonquin Department Chairs are school based leaders</u>: Department Chairs are members of the School Based Leadership Team led by the principal. Advocacy of specific subject matter areas is achieved through interdisciplinary considerations and school-based planning. Within this context, decisions are developed collaboratively rather than in isolation. As school based leaders, they also work collaboratively to promote the awareness of and adherence to the school's core values. As department leaders, they also assume responsibility for management of departmental budget,

- communicating with Department members including relaying minutes and information discussed at the SBLT meetings, scheduling and room assignments, assignment of classes to teachers, and management of inventories and reports.
- 2. Algonquin department chairs are active in implementing education reform. Department chairs are teachers with expertise in a content area or in clusters of related content areas. Even more important, however, they are specialists in curriculum development as a field of study in and of itself. Department chairs understand and implement educational reform concepts like common core, performance standards, curriculum frameworks, interdisciplinary learning and performance-based assessment of student progress. They apply these concepts to their own subject matter areas and to the planning and development of the school's integrated Program of Studies as a focus on students' needs and interests.
- 3. Algonquin department chairs are subject area specialists: Department chairs demonstrate multiple approaches to teaching and learning in their own classrooms. They understand and use emerging concepts like learning styles, teaching styles, active learning and various grouping patterns. They are staff development specialists, working directly with other teachers as mentors who model effective teaching. Though they work primarily with personnel in their respective content areas, they also work with personnel in interdisciplinary ways. In this capacity they observe and support department members' performance within the context of the district's accepted practices. They also help staff regarding all aspects of professional growth and development focused on improving student performance. Department chairs also participate in the hiring and orientation of new staff.
- 4. <u>Department chairs provide leadership and guidance towards the resolution of issues involving students, parents, and staff</u>: They approach each situation not necessarily in terms of who is right and who is wrong, or even in the interest of harmonious relationships, but always in terms of what is fair to students within the context of the school's policies and core values.
- 5. Department chairs may be present at the midyear formative assessment meeting with the teacher and the administrator.

APPENDIX B

RECOGNITION OF A CLUB SPORT

In order for a co-curricular activity to transition to a club sport, all of the following conditions must be met:

- 1. The activity must be in existence at a minimum of two years. The activity advisors will receive a stipend consistent with the co-curricular rate as identified in the Algonquin Regional Teacher's Contract.
- 2. The number of student participants must be consistently sufficient to field a team, and provide adequate reserves/additional players to endure the usual loss of players through normal and extraordinary absences due to injury, illness, and other reasons.
- 3. There must be sufficient interscholastic competition, at the appropriate level of competitiveness, so that the team is challenged by similarly skillful and fair play opponents.

Process

- 1. The club sport must petition the review committee, (completing the proper form) for approval to advance from a co-curricular activity to a club sport and meet the requirements as stated above.
- 2. The proposed club sport must demonstrate that it is a sustainable club sport (defined above). Participants are expected to wear game attire that identifies themselves as members of Algonquin Regional High School.
- 3. The club sport must submit its request for recognition as such by December 1 in the year prior to requesting consideration as a club sport and at the completion of two years as a co-curricular activity. The review committee is comprised of the Athletic Director, Principal or designee, and a representative chosen by the Algonquin Regional Teachers Association. A unanimous vote by the review committee is required.

Conditions of acceptance

The club or activity will:

- 1. Pay the sports fee consistent with other athletic teams.
- 2. Be under the general and specific direction of the Athletic Director.
- 3. Be afforded services similar to other teams, to include:
 - A stipend for coaching based on the Athletic Coaches salary schedule and compensated at the Freshmen\Club sport level. Additional co-coaches based upon the number of players.
 - Transportation to games away from the school.
 - Access to fields for practice and games.
 - Game officials, athletic trainers, etc.
- *A club sport will advance to the next level of athletic recognition if and when it becomes a sanctioned MIAA sport.
- **This is subject to funding

APPENDIX C

FLEXIBLE PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

The six (6) hours of on or off campus PD may be fulfilled in a variety of ways. Staff may submit and take part in professional partnerships, conduct and lead PD opportunities within the district, attend PD opportunities that occur after the school day has ended, throughout the school year beyond the school day, attend and participate in webinars, recommend and participate with guest speakers, develop and participate in topical professional learning communities (PLC's), and participate in virtual learning offerings that may be offered by the district. Staff may submit requests for PD proposals consistent with our more traditional scheduling of professional development. For teachers, the PD for these (6) hours must occur after the school day ends.

The parties believe this model provides for maximum flexibility and fluidity, professional and administrative ownership, and personalized and meaningful teaching and learning experiences for all participants. The use of these six (6) hours will be designed in collaboration with the principal and professional development/building staff with feedback from the Professional Development Committee.

The Professional Development Committee (PDC) includes two representatives from each of the K-8 schools and four representatives from Algonquin. The PDC is responsible for assisting in the development of site-based and District parameters, including but not limited to documentation, procedures and scheduling. Each member of the PDC will receive a stipend of \$27.50 per hour as defined by contract.

Additional members may be added to accommodate both District and site-based professional development planning.

APPENDIX D

CLUB ADVISOR STIPENDS

In order to recognize and encourage student club formation and staff involvement, it is proposed that club advisors be paid a stipend based on their level of involvement, dedicated time, and the dynamic activities of the club.

The proposal should include a minimum of ten to twenty (10-20) students. Clubs with fewer than 10 students may qualify for Category A. Documentation to support participation is required in order to process the stipend payment. A stipend will be paid on an annual basis and each club must receive approval from the principal each year.lane

Annual club proposals may be submitted by students, either in company with an interested advisor, or with a plan to form a club and secure an advisor. Money for new club advisor stipends would be made available annually, and based upon a funding mechanism using the activity fee receipts or operational budget. This funding source would be determined annually, in collaboration with the Principal and Director of Finance/Superintendent. The Principal has oversight for expending the allocated amounts for Clubs. Payment for stipends must be submitted, with the documentation required, by June 1 of each school year. It is possible that requests for clubs could exceed the annual allocated funds. All clubs beyond the allocated amounts will not be funded.

The Principal will maintain a record of clubs and expenditures and review all documentation on a quarterly basis with the Director of Finance/Superintendent. The table below is intended to serve as a guide to determining the amount of stipend paid semi-annually to club advisors. Its purpose is to determine the level of time investment and operational involvement of the advisors in order to identify the proper stipend Club Categories A, B, and C.

Club Category A: Club meets	Club Category B: Club meets	Club Category C: Club meets
seasonally, approximately 12	per semester, approximately 26	throughout the year, in excess
times during the year, or 10 to	to 50 hours per club. Advisor	of 50 hours. Advisor conducts
25 hours per club. Advisor	conducts meetings and	meetings and oversees all
mostly monitors meetings.	activities.	activities.